
 
 
 

 

 
Agenda 

 
 
 
 
 

Licensing and Registration Sub 
Committee 
 
 
 

Date: Monday 29 October 2012 

Time: 5.00 pm 

Place: Council Chamber, Town Hall 

 
For any further information please contact:  

Lois Stock, Democratic Services Officer 

Telephone: 01865 252275 

Email: lstock@oxford.gov.uk 

 
 
 



 

 

HOW TO OBTAIN AGENDA 

 

In order to reduce the use of resources, our carbon footprint and our costs we will no longer produce 
paper copies of agenda over and above our minimum internal and Council member requirement. 
Paper copies may be looked at the Town Hall Reception and at Customer Services, St Aldate’s and 
at the Westgate Library 

 

A copy of the agenda may be:- 

- Viewed on our website – mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

- Downloaded from our website 

- Subscribed to electronically by registering online at mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

- Sent to you in hard copy form upon payment of an annual subscription. 

 

 

 
 

Licensing and Registration Sub Committee 
 

Membership 
 
 
Chair   

 
Vice-Chair   

 
 Councillor Colin Cook Jericho and Osney; 

 Councillor Van Coulter Barton and Sandhills; 

 Councillor Michael Gotch Wolvercote; 

 Councillor Gwynneth Royce St. Margaret's; 

 
 



 
  

 

 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
  Pages 

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests they may 
have in any of the following agenda items. Guidance on this is set out at the 
end of these agenda pages 

 

 

3 PROCEDURE TO BE FOLLOWED 
 

1 - 6 

 Guidance is attached. 

 
 

4 BREACH OF STREET TRADING CONSENT CONDITIONS - MISS 
ARZU DE JESUS NEVES 
 

7 - 18 

 Report of the Head of Environmental Development attached. 
 
The Sub Committee is asked to determine what action to take in response to 
the contents of the report.  

 

 

5 BREACH OF STREET TRADING CONSENT CONDITIONS - MR 
MEHDI KARROUCHI AND MRS WADEYA KARROUCHI 
 

19 - 48 

 Report of the Head of Environmental Development attached. 
 
The Sub Committee is asked to determine what action to take in response to 
the contents of the report. 

 

 

6 APPLICATION FOR A VACANT APPROVED SITE 
 

49 - 60 

 Report of the Head of Environmental Development attached. 
 
The Sub Committee is asked to determine the application received as laid out 
in the report. 
 

 
 

 

7 APPLICATION FOR A VACANT APPROVED SITE. 
 

61 - 76 

 Report of the Head of Environmental Development attached. 
 
The Sub Committee is asked to determine the application received as laid out 
in the report.  

 



 
  

 

 

 

8 MINUTES 
 

77 - 84 

 Minutes of the meeting held on 24th September 2012 attached.  

 
 

9 MATTERS EXEMPT FROM PUBLICATION 
 

 

 If the Sub Committee wishes to exclude the press and the public from the 
meeting during consideration of any aspects of the preceding agenda items it 
will be necessary for the Sub Committee to pass a resolution in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 
specifying the grounds on which their presence could involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as described in specific paragraphs of Part 
1 of Schedule 12A of the Act if and so long, as in all the circumstances of the 
case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 
DECLARING INTERESTS 
 
General duty 
 
You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the 
item on the agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it becomes 
apparent to you. 
 
What is a disclosable pecuniary interest? 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your  employment; sponsorship (ie payment 
for expenses incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards 
your election expenses); contracts; land in the Council’s area; licences for land in the 
Council’s area; corporate tenancies; and securities.  These declarations must be 
recorded in each councillor’s Register of Interests which is publicly available on the 
Council’s website. 
 
Declaring an interest 
 
Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a 
meeting, you must declare that you have an interest.  You should also disclose the 
nature as well as the existence of the interest. 
 
If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after having declared it at the meeting 
you must not participate in discussion or voting on the item and must withdraw from 
the meeting whilst the matter is discussed. 
 
Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception 
 
Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ 
Code of Conduct says that a member “must serve only the public interest and must 
never improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person including 
yourself” and that “you must not place yourself in situations where your honesty and 
integrity may be questioned”.  What this means is that the mater of interests must be 
viewed within the context of the Code as a whole and regard should continue to be 
paid to the perception of the public. 
 
1
 Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member her or 

himself but also those of the member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with as husband 
or wife or as if they were civil partners. 



 

 

 
 



  
OXFORD CITY COUNCIL 

 

LICENSING and REGISTRATION SUB-COMMITTEE  
 

HEARING PROCEDURES: 
 
  

Housekeeping Matters 

• Mobiles must be switched off 

• No smoking throughout the 
building 

• Consumption of food is not 
permitted 

 
The Meeting 
 
1. The Licensing Casework Sub-Committee will usually consist of three 

members of the Council (councillors) who are also members of the 
Council’s General Purposes Licensing Committee. In some circumstances 
it may sit with a quorum of 2 councillors.  At the start of each Sub-
Committee meeting a Chair shall be elected from among the members.  
The Sub-Committee is responsible for reaching a decision upon the 
application  having heard representations and considering all relevant 
material presented. 

 
The Paperwork 
 
2. Officers of the licensing authority (the City Council) will prepare the 

paperwork for the application that is to be heard by the Sub-Committee.  
The paperwork will include:- 

 

• A summary of the application, the representations received and of any 
other relevant material 

 

• The application and any other supporting material supplied by the 
applicant 

 

• Any observations on the application made by the Police or other 
technical advisor to the Sub Committee 

 

• Any representations of objection to the application 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

1



 
Introductions  
 
3. The Chairman will commence the hearing by introducing her or himself 

and the other Sub-Committee members.  The Chair will then ask all of the 
other parties present to introduce themselves and explain in what capacity 
they are attending.  

 
Conduct of Proceedings 

 
4. The role of the Chair is to control the proceedings.  All questions must be 

put through the Chair.  
 
5. The Chair will indicate that the members of the Sub-Committee have read 

and familiarised themselves with the papers and issues.  The Chair will 
stress that the Sub-Committee does not therefore require points to be 
made or repeated at length. 

 
6. The hearing shall take the form of a discussion.  Formal cross- 

examination shall not be permitted unless the Chairman considers that 
cross-examination in a particular circumstance would assist.  In exercising 
this discretion to permit cross-examination, the Chairman must have 
regard to the rules of natural justice and the right to a fair hearing. 

 
7. Members of the Sub-Committee may ask questions to any party to elicit 

further information.  The representative of the licensing authority may also 
ask questions of any party in order to clarify the evidence and any issues 
in the case. 

  
8. In considering the application or any representation made by a party the 

Sub-Committee may take into account documentary or other information 
relied on by a party in support of their application or representation - 
provided that copies of the information have been supplied to the 
Licensing Authority at least seven working days before the hearing or, with 
the consent of all the other parties, after that time. 

 
 

9. Where a person attending the hearing is acting in a manner that the Sub-
Committee consider is disruptive, the Sub-Committee may require that the 
person leave the hearing and may: 

 
(a) refuse to permit that person to return; or 
 
(b) permit him / her to return only on such conditions as the authority 

may specify. 
 

2



10. Before the end of the hearing any person who was required to leave the 
hearing under paragraph 11 may submit in writing any information which 
they would have been entitled to give orally had they not been required to 
leave. 

 
Order of Proceedings 
 
11. Any party may be assisted or represented by any person whether or not 

that person is legally qualified. 
 
 
 

The Licensing Authority 
 

12. The representative of the licensing authority shall present the 
paperwork relating to the application to be heard by the Sub-
Committee.  The representative shall say who the applicant is, what 
the application is for and explain the paperwork before the Sub-
Committee. 

 
Applicant’s case 

 
13. The Applicant will outline their application and present their case 

and may call witnesses if desired. 
 
14. The Sub Committee may ask questions of the Applicant. 
 
15. Other parties may ask factual questions of the Applicant. Cross-

examination will only be permitted with the consent of the Chair.  
 

Observations of Police and/or Technical advisors 
 

16. Where appropriate the police or technical advisers to the Sub 
Committee may make their observations.  

 
17. The Sub Committee may ask questions of the Police and/or 

technical advisors. 
 
18. Other parties may ask factual questions of the Police and/or 

technical advisors. Cross-examination will only be permitted with 
the consent of the Chair.  

 
Objector’s case 

 
19. Where written representations of objection have been received the 

Sub Committee will have regard to those representations. Any 

3



Objectors attending the hearing may make oral representations in 
support of their objection and call witnesses if they wish. However, 
the Sub Committee will not require repetition of points already 
made in written representations.  

 
20. Where a number of objectors have made representations which are 

similar in nature the Sub Committee will expect a spokesperson to 
be appointed to represent the group.  

 
21. The Sub Committee may ask questions of any objector. 
 
22. Other parties may ask factual questions of any objector. Cross-

examination will only be permitted with the consent of the Chair.  
 
Closing submissions 
 
23. All parties will then be given the opportunity briefly to summarise their key 

points.  The order shall be:- 
 

• Objectors 

• Police and/or technical advisors 

• Applicant 
 
  
 
Determinations 
 
24. At the end of the submissions, the Chair will announce that the hearing is 

adjourned while the Sub-Committee deliberate in private. The Sub 
Committee will be accompanied by the Committee Clerk and Legal 
Advisor during their deliberations.    

 
25. If it is necessary to recall any party for clarification of any point, then all 

parties should be recalled. 
 
26. The Chair will either: 
 
� Announce the decision of the Sub Committee and confirm that a written 

determination with reasons will be sent to the parties by a given date. 
 

 or 
 
� Close the hearing and confirm that once a decision has been made a 

written determination with reasons will be sent to the parties by a given 
date.  

 

4



27. In any event a written determination setting out the reasons for the 
decision will be sent to the parties within five working days of the hearing. 

 
Closed hearing 
 
28. The hearing shall normally take place in public.  However, the Sub-

Committee may exclude the press and the public from all or part of a 
hearing where exempt information (section 100A(4) Local Government Act 
1972) is concerned and the Sub Committee considers that the public 
interest in so doing outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or that part 
of the hearing, taking place in public.  

 
 
 
 

--------------------------------------- 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

                                                                                    
 
To: Licensing & Registration Sub Committee 
 
Date: 29th October 2012         Item No:   
  
Report of:  Head of Environmental Development  
 
Title of Report: Breach of Street Trading Consent Conditions – Miss 

Arzu De Jesus Neves 
 

 

 
Summary and Recommendations 

 
Purpose of report:  To consider a Street Trading Consent where the 
street trader has not adhered to the conditions of the Street Trading 
Policy. 
 
Report Approved by:  
 
Finance: Paul Swaffield  
Legal: Daniel Smith  
 
Policy Framework: Street Trading Policy 

 A vibrant and sustainable economy 
 
Recommendation(s): 
 
Committee is recommended to determine what action to take in relation 
to Miss Arzu De Jesus Neves Street Trading Consent, taking into 
account the details in this report and any representations made at this 
Sub Committee meeting. 
 

 
 
Legislative Background/Legal Framework 
 
1. In 1986 the Council resolved that Schedule 4 to the Local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 should apply to its area.  Under 
Schedule 4 of the Act the Council can manage street trading by 
designating streets as “consents streets”, “licence streets” or “prohibited 
streets”. The street trading site in question is on a street designated as a 
"consent street". The Sub Committee may grant a Consent if it “thinks 
fit”. A Consent may be granted for a maximum of one year and may be 
revoked at any time.  When exercising this general power Members 

 

Agenda Item 4

7



should only take into account relevant considerations; must give 
applicants a fair hearing and should give reasons for their decision. 

 
2. The Sub Committee may attach any conditions to a Consent that it 

considers “reasonably necessary”. 
 

Policy Considerations 
 
3. The Street Trading Policy was adopted by Council in July 2010 and 

came into force on 1st January 2011 for existing traders.  Paragraph 5.2 
of the Policy states that the Head of Environmental Development is 
authorised to: 

 
“5.2(c) refer applications to the Licensing and Registration Sub 

Committee; (i) when there has been a complaint about the trader 
or the trader has broken the conditions of their Street Trading 
Consent .” 

 
Reasons for Referral to Licensing & Registration Sub Committee 
 
4. The Consent has been referred to the Sub-Committee in accordance 

with paragraph 5.2 of the Policy as Miss De Jesus Neves has failed to 
act as the principal operator and have day to day control of the vehicle 
she holds a Street Trading Consent for and has allowed unauthorised 
employees to operate her vehicle.  These issues have raised concerns 
as to who is the principal operator of Chefs Corner and whether the pitch 
is being sub let.  Miss De Jesus Neves is therefore in breach of condition 
16, 17 and 18 of the General Conditions for Annual Street Trading 
Consents. A full copy of Miss De Jesus Neves’s Consent and Conditions 
can be found at Appendix A. 

 
“16 A Street Trading Consent cannot be transferred or sold to 
another person except that the Consent may be transferred to a member 
of the Consent Holder’s immediate family in the event of the Consent 
Holder’s death or incapacity on payment of a fee.  The sub letting of a 
pitch is prohibited” 
 
“17 The Consent Holder must be the principal operator and have 
day to day control of the stall/vehicle.  The Consent Holder may employ 
any other person to assist in operating the stall/vehicle and shall notify 
the Head of Environmental Development with the name and address of 
that person.  An Administration fee will be payable.” 
 
“18 Anyone who operates a stall/vehicle other than the Consent 
Holder must be authorised by the Head of Environmental Development.” 

 
5. Licensing Officer, Samantha Howell visited Site 5 Queen Street, known 

as Chefs Corner on 20th September 2012 as part of a Council lead Multi 
Agency inspection evening.  Upon inspection Miss De Jesus Neves was 
not available.  Two males identified as Mr Adrian Babei and Mirek 

8



Mirochna were working within the vehicle.  Mr Babei and Mr Mirichna are 
not registered as employees with the Council as required by conditions 
17 and 18 of the consent.  When Samantha Howell asked the 
whereabouts of Miss De Jesus Neves that evening, the two men had no 
comprehension of whom Miss De Jesus Neves was and explained that 
they worked for Mr Ulas.  Mr Ulas is a registered employee at Site 14 
Queen Street.  The two men were able to produce the Street Trading 
Consent for the vehicle at Site 5, but did not understand what it was. A 
copy of the Street Trading Inspection Report can be seen at Appendix B. 

 
6. Environmental Health Officer, David Stevens was also in attendance that 

evening as part of the Multi Agency Inspection.  He inspected the van 
and found food safety contraventions regarding food storage, 
temperature recording and witnessed a lack of food hygiene training and 
it was apparent to him that basic business practices needed to be 
improved. 

 
7. Samantha Howell asked Mr Babei and Mr Mirochna to call whoever was 

in charge of the vehicle and request them to attend the site.  Mr Ulas 
arrived shortly after the phone call and explained that Miss De Jesus 
Neves was away and he was helping in the interim.  

 
8. Prior to the Multi Agency Inspection evening, colleagues Mandy 

Wallington and Daniel Barker, Environmental Enforcement Officers, had 
passed intelligence to Miscellaneous Licensing that over a four week 
period - from 23rd August 2012 to 13th September 2012 - they had not 
witnessed Miss De Jesus Neves presence during evening compliance 
checks at the vehicle.  The Officers noted that two men had been in 
attendance each time the vehicle was observed. 

 
9. Miss Neves attended an appointment with Samantha Howell on Monday 

1st October to discuss the Multi Agency inspection.  Miss Neves was 
reminded of her conditions and the importance of asking for advice if she 
is unclear on following them. 

 
Relevant Background Information 
 
10. The renewal application submitted by Miss Neves, for the period April 

2012 – March 2013, was put before Licensing and Registration Sub 
Committee on 17th April 2012.  This was due to Miss Neves failure to 
take up her street trading consent and trade from the site and concerns 
regarding a previous unsatisfactory food hygiene inspection.  See 
Appendix C for the full Decision Notice. 

 
Financial Implications 
 
11. The Council collects fees for the Street Trading function.  Predicted 

income from licence fees are included in the Council’s budget. 
 
 

9



 
Legal Implications 
 
12. Street Traders cannot be said to enjoy security of tenure. There is no 

legitimate expectation in law that a consent will be indefinitely renewed 
and there is no requirement for the Council to give compensation for the 
loss of any consent (other than any refund of consent fees paid in 
advance).  However, any decision to terminate a street trading consent 
or refuse an application may be subject to judicial review and if the 
decision were held to be unreasonable then compensation may result. 

 
13. Any decision to revoke a consent or refuse a renewal application must 

be proportionate taking into account all relevant circumstances and the 
applicants, or consent holder’s, right to a fair hearing.  An application 
should not be refused, or consent revoked, arbitrarily or without clear 
reasons. 

 
Human Rights Act Considerations 
 
14. Article 1 of the first Protocol of the European Convention on Human Rights 

provides that every person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his 
possessions.  No one shall be deprived of his possessions except in the 
public interest and subject to the conditions provided for by law.  However, 
a street trading consent is not considered a possession in law and the 
protection in Article 1 is therefore not directly engaged. 

 
15. Nevertheless, with the advice of Law & Governance and in the interests of 

fairness, the Licensing Officer has taken the Human Rights Act 1998 into 
account and considers that the potential interference with the rights of the 
applicant would be proportionate, in the public interest and subject to the 
conditions provided for by law. 

 
 
Name and contact details of author: Samantha Howell 
 Tel:  01865 252558 
 Email:  sjhowell@oxford.gov.uk  
 
 
Background papers: Appendix A – Consent and Conditions 
 Appendix B – Street Trading Inspection Report  
 Appendix C – Decision Notice 17th April 2012 
   
 
Version number:  2 

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

                                                                                    
 
To: Licensing & Registration Sub Committee 
 
Date: 29th October 2012        Item No:   
  
Report of:  Head of Environmental Development  
 
Title of Report: Breach of Street Trading Consent Conditions – Mr 

Mehdi Karrouchi and Mrs Wadeya Karrouchi 
 

 

 
Summary and Recommendations 

 
Purpose of report:  To consider a Street Trading Consent where the 
street trader has not adhered to the conditions of the Street Trading 
Policy. 
 
Report Approved by:  
 
Finance: Paul Swaffield  
Legal: Daniel Smith  
 
Policy Framework: Street Trading Policy 

 A vibrant and sustainable economy 
 
Recommendation(s): 
 
Committee is recommended to determine what action to take in relation 
to Mr and Mrs Karrouchi’s Street Trading Consent, taking into account 
the details in this report and any representations made at this Sub 
Committee meeting. 
 

 
 
Legislative Background/Legal Framework 
 
1. In 1986 the Council resolved that Schedule 4 to the Local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 should apply to its area.  Under 
Schedule 4 of the Act the Council can manage street trading by 
designating streets as “consents streets”, “licence streets” or “prohibited 
streets”.  The Sub Committee may grant a Consent if it “thinks fit”.  When 
exercising this general power Members should only take into account 
relevant considerations; must give each applicant a fair hearing and 
should give reasons for their decision. 

 

 

Agenda Item 5

19



2. The Sub Committee may attach any conditions to a Consent that it 
considers “reasonably necessary”. 

 
Policy Considerations 
 
3. The Street Trading Policy was adopted by Council in July 2010 and 

came into force on 1st January 2011 for existing traders.  Paragraph 5.2 
of the Policy states that the Head of Environmental Development is 
authorised to: 

 
“5.2(c) refer applications to the Licensing and Registration Sub 

Committee; (i) when there has been a complaint about the trader 
or the trader has broken the conditions of their Street Trading 
Consent .” 

 
Reasons for Referral to Licensing & Registration Sub Committee 
 
4. The Consent has been referred to the Sub-Committee in accordance 

with paragraph 5.2 of the Policy as Mr and Mrs Karrouchi have failed to 
comply with a legal notice served on them by Lyndsey Key 
Environmental Health Officer from the Commercial Regulation Team.  Mr 
and Mrs Karrouchi are therefore in breach of conditions 6 and 9 of the 
General Conditions for Annual Street Trading Consents. A copy of Mr 
and Mrs Karrouchi’s Consent and Conditions can be found at Appendix 
A. 

 
“6 The Consent Holder shall comply with all statutes, statutory 
instruments and byelaws currently in force.  Consent Holders must pay 
particular attention to the requirements of the Health & Safety at Work 
Act 1974, the Food Safety (General Food Hygiene) Regulations 1995.” 
 
“9 The Consent Holders vehicle/stall shall be kept in a clean, safe 
and well maintained condition and be of a presentable appearance.” 

 
5. Lyndsey Key, Environmental Health Officer, wrote to Mr and Mrs 

Karrouchi on 26th March 2012 following a routine food hygiene 
inspection.  A number of contraventions were found during the 
inspection.  These contraventions included issues with Mr and Mrs 
Karrouchi’s food safety management system, food business registration, 
fridges and freezers at home, hot holding, disinfecting water containers, 
hot water supply, washing vegetables, over clothing, hand washing, 
chopping boards and waste (see Appendix B).  

 
6. Lyndsey Key, wrote to Mr and Mrs Karrouchi again on 13th June 2012 

following a revisit to the premises.  The majority of food safety legislation 
contraventions from the original inspection had not been addressed and 
as a result Hygiene Improvement Notices were served (see Appendix C).  

 
7. In spite of the assistance offered to Mr and Mrs Karrouchi by Lyndsey 

Key, as of 5th October 2012 the Hygiene Improvement Notices still 

20



remain only partly complied with. A legal case is currently being compiled 
by the Commercial Regulation Team. 

 
Relevant Background Information 
 
8.  The renewal application submitted by Mr and Mrs Karrouchi, for the 

period April 2012 – March 2013, was put before Licensing and 
Registration Sub Committee on 20th March 2012.  This was due to a 
noise complaint and breaches of conditions. See Appendix D for the full 
Decision Notice. 

 
Financial Implications 
 
9. The Council collects fees for the Street Trading function.  Predicted 

income from licence fees are included in the Council’s budget.   
 
Legal Implications 
 
10. Street Traders cannot be said to enjoy security of tenure. There is no 

legitimate expectation in law that a Consent will be indefinitely renewed 
and there is no requirement for the Council to give compensation for the 
loss of any consent (other than any refund of consent fees paid in 
advance).  However, any decision to terminate a street trading consent 
or refuse an application may be subject to a judicial review and if the 
decision were held to be unreasonable then compensation may result.  

 
11. Any decision to revoke a consent or refuse a renewal application must 

be proportionate taking into account all relevant circumstances and the 
applicants, or Consent holder’s, right to a fair hearing.  An application 
should not be refused, or consent revoked, arbitrarily or without clear 
reasons. 

 
Human Rights Act Considerations 
 
12. Article 1 of the first Protocol of the European Convention on Human Rights 

provides that every person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his 
possessions.  No one shall be deprived of his possessions except in the 
public interest and subject to the conditions provided for by law.  However 
a street trading consent is not considered a possession in law and the 
protection in Article 1 is therefore not directly engaged. 

 
13. Nevertheless, with the advice of Law & Governance and in the interests of 

fairness, the Licensing Officer has taken the Human Rights Act 1998 into 
account and considers that the potential interference with the rights of the 
applicant would be proportionate, in the public interest and subject to the 
conditions provided for by law. 

 
 
Name and contact details of author: Samantha Howell 
 Tel:  01865 252558 
 Email:  showell@oxford.gov.uk 

21



Background papers:  
Appendix A – Consent and Conditions 
Appendix B – Letter re Contraventions 26th March 2012 
Appendix C – Letter re Contraventions & Hygiene Improvement Notices 13th 

June 2012 
Appendix D – Minutes of Licensing and Registration Sub Committee 20th 

March 2012 
 
Version number:  2 

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
 

                                                                                    
To: Licensing & Registration Sub Committee 
 
Date: 29th October 2012         Item No:   
  
Report of:  Head of Environmental Development  
 
Title of Report: Application for a vacant approved site. 
 

 

 
Summary and Recommendations 

 
Purpose of report: To seek determination of an application for a Street 
Trading Consent to fill a vacant approved street trading site. 
 
Report Approved by:  
 
Finance: Paul Swaffield  
Legal: Daniel Smith  
 
Policy Framework: Street Trading Policy 
 A vibrant and sustainable economy 
 
Recommendation(s): 
 
Licensing and Registration Sub Committee is recommended to 
determine the application received and decide whether to grant a Street 
Trading Consent, taking into account the details in this report and any 
representations made at this Sub Committee meeting. 
 

 
The Application 
 
1. The Miscellaneous Licensing Team have received an application for 

Street Trading Consent from Mr Akim Akkouche and Mrs Christine 
Akkouche.  Mr and Mrs Akkouche have applied to trade from approved 
street trading Site 6 Broad Street outside number 17. The site is currently 
only approved for evening trading.   

 
2. Mr and Mrs Akkouche have been granted initial Street Trading Consent 

authorised by the Head of Environmental Development. They now wish 
to obtain a 12 month Consent. 

 
3. A full copy of Mr and Mrs Akkouche’s application can be found at 

Appendix A of this report. 
 

 

Agenda Item 6

49



 

 

Legislative Background/Legal Framework 
 
4. In 1986 the Council resolved that Schedule 4 to the Local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 should apply to its area.  Under 
Schedule 4 of the Act the Council can manage street trading by 
designating streets as “consents streets”, “licence streets” or “prohibited 
streets”.  The Sub-Committee may grant a Consent if it “thinks fit”.  When 
exercising this general power Members should only take into account 
relevant considerations; must give each applicant a fair hearing and 
should give reasons for their decision. 

 
5. The Sub Committee may attach any conditions to a Consent that it 

considers “reasonably necessary”. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
6. The Street Trading Policy was adopted by Council in July 2010 and 

came into force on 1st January 2011 for existing traders. Delegation is 
laid out in the Council’s Constitution.  Paragraph 5.2 of the Policy states 
that “the General Purposes Licensing Committee appoints a Licensing 
and Registration Sub-Committee to decide street trading applications 
that are for longer than three months”. 

 
7. Paragraph 5.4 of the Street Trading Policy states: 
 

“5.4 In considering applications for the grant or renewal of a Street 
Trading Consent the following factors will be considered: 
 
(a) Public Safety 
Whether the street trading activity represents, or is likely to represent, a 
substantial risk to the public from the point of view of obstruction, fire 
hazard, unhygienic conditions or danger that may occur when a trader is 
accessing the site. 
 
(b) Public Order 
Whether the street trading activity represents, or is likely to represent, a 
substantial risk to public order. 
 
(c) The Avoidance of Public Nuisance 
Whether the street trading activity represents, or is likely to represent, a 
substantial risk of nuisance to the public from noise or misbehaviour, 
particularly in residential areas. 
 
(d) Appearance of the stall or vehicle 
The stall or vehicle must be of smart appearance and meet criteria, 
including size, laid down in the standard consent conditions. 
Photographs or sketches, including dimensions, must be provided with 
all new applications and requests for approval of changes to or 
replacement of a stall or vehicle. 
 

50



 

 

(e) Needs of the Area 
The demand for the articles for sale, and the geographical location of the 
proposed site. 
 
(f) Environmental Credentials 
The impact of the proposed operation on the local environment including 
street surfaces and materials, power supply, carbon footprint, supply 
chain, packaging, waste minimisation, waste disposal and waste created 
by customers. Mitigating measures to minimise the environmental impact 
of the proposed operation. 
 
(g) Food Traders 
Applicants to trade in hot or cold food must hold a current Level 2 Food 
Hygiene Certificate accredited by The Chartered Institute of 
Environmental Health, or The Royal Society of Health, or The Royal 
Institute of Public Health and Hygiene. 
 
(h) Highway 
The location and operating times will be such that the highway can be 
maintained in accordance with the Oxfordshire County Council’s 
requirements and that there are no dangers to those who have a right to 
use the highway and no obstruction for emergency access.” 

 
Reason for Referral to Licensing & Registration Sub Committee 
 
8. This matter has been referred to Licensing & Registration Sub 

Committee as, Mr and Mrs Akkouche have previously been given 
Consent by the Head of Environmental Development and Site 6 Broad 
Street outside number 17, is an approved evening site but the applicants 
wish to use it during the day. 

 
9. Mr and Mrs Akkouche have applied to operate ‘Crepes o Mania’ from the 

site. Their application is for organic sweet and savoury French crepes 
and Belgian Waffles.  They wish to continue trading Monday to Sunday 
10:00 to 18:00. 

 
10. Mr and Mrs Akkouche have invested in a top of the range mini van to run 

their business from (see Appendix A).  They come with a good reference 
from the University of Oxford as they had permission to trade from the 
University Parks for some years (see Appendix A). The van has been 
inspected by Environmental Health Officers at the Vale of White Horse 
District Council and found to be satisfactory. 

 
11. Since Mr and Mrs Akkouche have traded from street trading, Site 6 

Broad Street outside number 17, we have received no complaints from 
traders, Highways or Thames Valley Police.  Mr and Mrs Akkouche have 
built good relations with the surrounding businesses. 

 
 
 

51



 

 

Financial Implications 
 
12. The Council collects fees for the Street Trading function.  Predicted 

income from licence fees are included in the Council’s budget. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
13. The Sub Committee may grant a Street Trading Consent if it 'thinks fit', 

see paragraph 3 above. A Street Trader Cannot be said to enjoy security 
of tenure and there is no requirement for the Council to give 
compensation for the loss of any Consent (other than any refund of 
Consent fees paid in advance).  However, any decision to refuse an 
application or terminate Street Trading Consents may be subject to a 
judicial review and if held to be unreasonable then compensation may 
result. 

 
14. Any determination of an application for Consent must be proportionate 

taking into account all relevant circumstances and the Consent holder’s 
right to a fair hearing.  An application should not be refused arbitrarily 
and without clear reason. 

 
Human Rights Act Considerations 
 
15. Article 6 of the European Convention on Human Rights provides that 

every person is entitled to a fair hearing in determination of a civil right or 
obligation. Applicants should be given a fair opportunity to present their 
case and respond to any representation against them.  

 
 
Name and contact details of author: Samantha Howell 
 Tel:  01865 252558 
 Email:  sjhowell@oxford.gov.uk 
 
Background papers:   
 
Appendix A – Application from Mr and Mrs Akkouche 
 
Version number:  2 
 
 
 
 
 

52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



 

 

 
 
 

                                                                                    
To: Licensing & Registration Sub Committee 
 
Date: 29th October 2012         Item No:   
  
Report of:  Head of Environmental Development  
 
Title of Report: Application for a new site. 
 

 

 
Summary and Recommendations 

 
Purpose of report: To seek determination of an application proposing a 
new street trading location. 
 
Report Approved by:  
 
Finance: Paul Swaffield  
Legal: Daniel Smith  
 
Policy Framework: Street Trading Policy 
 A vibrant and sustainable economy 
 
Recommendation(s): 
 
Licensing and Registration Sub Committee is recommended to 
determine the application received and decide whether to grant a Street 
Trading Consent, taking into account the details in this report and any 
representations made at this Sub Committee meeting. 
 

 
The Application 
 
1. The Miscellaneous Licensing Team have received an application for 

Street Trading Consent from Mr Mehmet Yilmaz.  Mr Yilmaz has applied 
to trade from a new proposed site.  The site he has proposed to trade 
from is on Warneford Lane, Oxford.   

 
2. A full copy of Mr Yilmaz’s application can be found at Appendix A of this 

report. Mr Yilmaz has attached a map and photos of the proposed site. 
 
Legislative Background/Legal Framework 
 
3. In 1986 the Council resolved that Schedule 4 to the Local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 should apply to its area.  Under 
Schedule 4 of the Act the Council can manage street trading by 

 

Agenda Item 7

61



 

 

designating streets as “consents streets”, “licence streets” or “prohibited 
streets”.  The Sub-Committee may grant a Consent if it “thinks fit”.  When 
exercising this general power Members should only take into account 
relevant considerations; must give each applicant a fair hearing and 
should give reasons for their decision. 

 
4. The Sub Committee may attach any conditions to a Consent that it 

considers “reasonably necessary”. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
5. The Street Trading Policy was adopted by Council in July 2010 and 

came into force on 1st January 2011 for existing traders. Delegation is 
laid out in the Council’s Constitution.  Paragraph 5.2 of the Policy states 
that the General Purposes Licensing Committee appoints a Licensing 
and Registration Sub Committee to decide street trading applications 
that are longer than three months. 

 
6. Paragraph 5.4 of the Street Trading Policy states: 
 

“5.4 In considering applications for the grant or renewal of a Street 
Trading Consent the following factors will be considered: 
 
(a) Public Safety 
Whether the street trading activity represents, or is likely to represent, a 
substantial risk to the public from the point of view of obstruction, fire 
hazard, unhygienic conditions or danger that may occur when a trader is 
accessing the site. 
 
(b) Public Order 
Whether the street trading activity represents, or is likely to represent, a 
substantial risk to public order. 
 
(c) The Avoidance of Public Nuisance 
Whether the street trading activity represents, or is likely to represent, a 
substantial risk of nuisance to the public from noise or misbehaviour, 
particularly in residential areas. 
 
(d) Appearance of the stall or vehicle 
The stall or vehicle must be of smart appearance and meet criteria, 
including size, laid down in the standard consent conditions. 
Photographs or sketches, including dimensions, must be provided with 
all new applications and requests for approval of changes to or 
replacement of a stall or vehicle. 
 
(e) Needs of the Area 
The demand for the articles for sale, and the geographical location of the 
proposed site. 
 
(f) Environmental Credentials 

62



 

 

The impact of the proposed operation on the local environment including 
street surfaces and materials, power supply, carbon footprint, supply 
chain, packaging, waste minimisation, waste disposal and waste created 
by customers. Mitigating measures to minimise the environmental impact 
of the proposed operation. 
 
(g) Food Traders 
Applicants to trade in hot or cold food must hold a current Level 2 Food 
Hygiene Certificate accredited by The Chartered Institute of 
Environmental Health, or The Royal Society of Health, or The Royal 
Institute of Public Health and Hygiene. 
 
(h) Highway 
The location and operating times will be such that the highway can be 
maintained in accordance with the Oxfordshire County Council’s 
requirements and that there are no dangers to those who have a right to 
use the highway and no obstruction for emergency access.” 

 
Reason for Referral to Licensing & Registration Sub Committee 
 
7. This matter has been referred to Licensing & Registration Sub 

Committee as Mr Yilmaz has approached the Council with a new site 
proposal.  Mr Yilmaz has applied for a 12 month Consent.  

 
8. His application is for hot and cold food, including breakfast in the 

morning and kebabs, burgers, chips, hot and cold drinks in the 
afternoon/late evening.   

 
9. Mr Yilmaz wishes to trade from Warneford Lane, Monday to Sunday 

0700 to 0300 the following day. 
 
10.  Upon receiving the application, Miscellaneous Licensing carried out a 

consultation with Thames Valley Police, Oxfordshire County Council 
Highways, Environmental Development and Ward Councillors. During 
the 14 day consultation one response was received from Oxfordshire 
County Council Highways who had no objections (see Appendix B). 

 
Financial Implications 
 
11. The Council collects fees for the Street Trading function.  Predicted 

income from licence fees are included in the Council’s budget. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
12. The Sub Committee may grant a Street Trading Consent if it 'thinks fit', 

see paragraph 3 above. A Street Trader Cannot be said to enjoy security 
of tenure and there is no requirement for the Council to give 
compensation for the loss of any Consent (other than any refund of 
Consent fees paid in advance).  However, any decision to refuse an 
application or terminate Street Trading Consents may be subject to a 

63



 

 

judicial review and if held to be unreasonable then compensation may 
result. 

 
13. Any determination of an application for Consent must be proportionate 

taking into account all relevant circumstances and the Consent holder’s 
right to a fair hearing.  An application should not be refused arbitrarily 
and without clear reason. 

 
Human Rights Act Considerations 
 
14. Article 6 of the European Convention on Human Rights provides that 

every person is entitled to a fair hearing in determination of a civil right or 
obligation. Applicants should be given a fair opportunity to present their 
case and respond to any representation against them.  

 
 
Name and contact details of author: Samantha Howell 
 Tel:  01865 252558 
 Email:  sjhowell@oxford.gov.uk 
 
Background papers:   
 
Appendix A – Application from Mr Mehmet Yilmaz 
Appendix B – Consultation Response Oxfordshire County Council Highways 
 
Version number:  2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



LICENSING AND REGISTRATION SUB COMMITTEE 
 

Monday 24 September 2012 
 
COUNCILLORS PRESENT: Councillors Cook, Coulter (Chair), Gotch and 
Royce. 
 
 
OFFICERS PRESENT: Lois Stock (Democratic and Electoral Services Officer), 
Allan Hibberd and Daniel Smith (Law and Governance) 
 
 
10. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
None given 
 
 
11. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
None given 
 
 
12. PROCEDURE TO BE FOLLOWED 
 
Resolved to note the procedure 
 
 
13. SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUE LICENCE RENEWAL 
 
In Attendance 
 
The following people were present at the meeting:- 
 
Gemma Cleaver (City Council Trainee Solicitor – present as an observer) 
 
On behalf of the Applicant 
 
Alistair Thompson (Owner of the premises)] 
Robert Opher (Designated Premises Supervisor) 
James Rankin (Counsel for the Applicant) 
 
Interested Parties 
 
Sue Tanner 
Marguerite Robinson (speaking on behalf of Roberta Nicholls) 
Jennifer Pegg 
Paul Hernandez  (East Oxford Conservatives) 
Farida Anwar 
Cynthia Harper (St Ebbes New Development Residents’ Association – SENDRA) 
Kate Clayton-Hathaway 
Claire Cochran 
Eileen Cameron 
Andrea Berryman 
Natalie Brooke 

Agenda Item 8

77



 

Louise Livesey. 
 
The Head of Environmental Development submitted a report (previously 
circulated, now appended) concerning an application to renew a Sexual 
entertainment Venue (SEV) licence for the premises known as The Lodge, 
Oxpens Road. 
 
Allan Hibberd (Licensing Officer) introduced the report.  
 
Louise Livesey sought to introduce additional material that she stated had been 
submitted as part of her representation but excluded from the agenda supporting 
papers.  
 
Mr Rankin (on behalf of the Applicant) objected on the grounds that he had not 
been given sufficient time to consider what was very detailed information. In 
addition, the Council’s own procedures for hearings stated that information 
should be supplied at least seven working days before the hearing, or with the 
consent of all other parties, after that time. On this occasion he could not 
consent to its submission. 
 
Councillor Coulter, chairing the hearing, and having taken advice from Daniel 
Smith (Legal Advisor), ruled that the information therefore should not be taken 
into account and it was not circulated.  
 
For the Applicant 
 
Mr Rankin presented the Applicant’s case. 
 
Background to the application. 
 
Mr Rankin outlined the history of the premises known as The Lodge. He 
explained that it had first been situated in Pennyfarthing Place and had 
subsequently moved to premises previously known as The Coven on Oxpens 
Road. The application for a SEV licence at this site had been heard and granted 
on 12th July 2011. The application before the Sub Committee was a renewal of 
the SEV licence. 
 
Current licence 
 
Mr Rankin submitted that all the previous objections to a SEV licence for the 
Lodge at Oxpens Road had been heard when its former licence was granted. 
There had been a detailed examination of the appropriateness of the area in July 
2011, and since then there had been no change in circumstances.  No new 
houses had been built, no new schools, places of worship or nursery schools 
had opened. The premises and area remain exactly the same, other than the old 
flooring shop had become a MOT centre.  
 
The applicant understood the objectors’ views, but these were not relevant 
considerations for the Council. The premises had been well run since the licence 
had been granted. The Police visited the site weekly and neither they nor 
Environmental Health had found anything untoward during their inspections, 
indeed neither had objected to the current application.   
 
 

78



 

Objections to the application 
 
Most objections that had been submitted were on moral grounds, with concerns 
expressed about the way in which women were displayed, but if placed to one 
side, and the issues of change in circumstances and the management of the 
premises were explored, there were in fact very few objections about the way in 
which these premises were run.  
 
One objection had submitted a photograph in which it was alleged that dancers 
were mingling with clients outside the premises, but the women shown there 
were customers and not dancers. There was a condition controlling the number 
of smokers to be outside at any one time, but in any event, there was nothing to 
prohibit dancers and customers from mixing. Dancers had their own smoking 
area.  
 
Door supervisors should always wear a high visibility jacket; and this would be 
enforced.  
 
The capacity of the premises was 150, which was far fewer than when the 
premises had been The Coven. Problems associated with the former premises 
had been dealt with; the old large sound system had been removed and the 
place had been re-laid out in a stylish manner - which included 28 CCTV 
cameras. Four SIA registered door staff were on duty, and the manager, DPS 
and DJ were all SIA registered as well.  SEV premises caused far fewer public 
order problems because they were not focussed on drinking. There was an 
admission fee and drinks were relatively expensive. 
 
Location of premises 
 
The premises were situated in a lightly populated area. The location had been 
sought with appropriateness in mind. Customers generally arrived and departed 
by car of taxi.  
 
It should not be overlooked that a large number of letters of support had been 
submitted as well as letters of objection. 
 
Answers to questions 
 
The following information was provided in answer to questions from Councillors 
and Interested Parties. 
 

(1) Dancers worked on a self employed basis; 
(2) There were 12 direct employees at The Lodge; 
(3) The majority of customers arrived by car or taxi; 
(4) No survey of the home addresses of customers had been taken, but it 

was known that many were from Oxford and the immediate 
neighbourhood; 

(5) The club had an arrangement with a local taxi firm to provide taxis when 
customers wished to leave. 99% left through vehicular means; 

(6) The club had not sought to actively engage with the local community. No-
one from the local community had come to the club with any concerns; 

(7) The Lodge caused far fewer problems than The Coven; 
(8) Dancers paid £20 house fee to dance. Each dance cost the customer 

£20, of which the club received £7 commission. There were regular 

79



 

sessions when dances were “commission free”. There were no fines for 
dancers who dressed incorrectly or who did not attract enough customers; 

(9) The club provided a safe, clean environment for the dancers, including 
door staff who escorted them to a taxi or their car at the end of the night. It 
was a condition of the licence that dancers were escorted to a safe place 
at the end of their shift; 

(10) No adverts were placed to attract dancers – it was all done by “word of 
mouth”. There was an application form on the club’s website, but women 
were not actively canvassed to be dancers; 

(11) The Lodge may be listed on other websites that exist to group SEV 
venues together as a source of information, but this could happen without 
the knowledge of the club’s owners.  

 
 

Interested Parties objecting to the Application. 
 
The following people spoke in objection to the application:- 
 
Marguerite Robinson 
 
People’s attitude towards the club had changed, in that people now found it 
inappropriate for a place like Oxford. Oxford was a seat of learning, and young 
people came to it from all over the world. Parents would have grave misgivings 
about sending their children to Oxford knowing that a venue such as The Lodge 
existed here. It is not an appropriate business for the centre of Oxford and many 
visitors are surprised to see it operating here. Now that it is operating, there has 
been a change of attitude towards it.  
 
The presence of the club makes women afraid to walk the streets alone, and it 
does not help improve the general attitude towards women.  The location of The 
Lodge has not changed, but people use the ice rink late at night, and coaches 
come and go at various hours. The premises are in an unsuitable location. In 
addition, the advertising hoarding near the railway station is offensive.  
 
Paul Hernandez 
 
The venue does not fit in with the local neighbourhood and it increases the 
chances of violence against women.  
 
Sue Tanner 
 
Evidence from women living near to the club shows that people going to and 
from the club cause alarm and distress to them. 
 
Louise Livesey 
 
Louise Livesey made the following points:- 
 
Submissions on the application. 
 
Ms Livesey submitted that the Council’s website, upon which comments could be 
made on the application, did not work for much of the consultation period; and 
she felt that this had an effect upon submissions. 
 

80



 

Of the letters in support, 60% were from people associated with The Lodge, 
either through employment or as contractors and therefore they had a vested 
interest in it. There was no evidence that the rest of the submissions were from 
local people.  
 
Location of premises 
 
This club does not exist in a vacuum.  
 
The nearest residential area is 300m from the club with car parks, the ice rink 
and a college very close by (within 100m).  The area has changed by the very 
opening of the club. It is a club run by men for men.  Many women in Oxford now 
felt uncomfortable because of its very existence.  
 
The Council’s economic policy for the area put it within the West End 
Redevelopment Area and promoted a stronger economic role. The club does not 
fit with this. Social inclusion is also put at risk by the presence of this club in this 
area.  There could be new housing in Oxpens, and this club (as a site of 
gendered sexual abuse) could threaten redevelopment plans. As the applicants 
state that most customers arrive by taxi or car, it would be easy to situate this 
club elsewhere outside the City. 
 
There is a question about the benefit of this club to the local economy. It only 
provides a small number of jobs and many dancers travel from much further 
afield to work here.  
 
Licensing Objectives.  
 
The four licensing objectives that the Council must promote were the prevention 
of public nuisance, the prevention of crime and disorder, the promotion of public 
safety and the protection of children from harm.  However, this club violated the 
first three, in that people had been solicited for sex in the area, and had suffered 
damage to cars and houses by clients leaving the club. Sexually explicit phrases 
were also shouted in the area. The applicants had not engaged with the local 
residents concerning the running of this venue. 
 
Safety. 
 
There was a question about whether clubs of this nature contributed to an 
atmosphere that was conducive to the sexual abuse and rape of women.  
 
In answer to a question from Ms Livesey, Natalie Brooke (Oxford Sexual Abuse 
and Rape Crisis Centre) stated that there had been an 18% increase in people 
contacting the centre since the club opened in November 2011. In addition, 
women contacting the centre stated that they felt threatened by its presence.  
 
Mr Rankin (on behalf of the Applicant) at this point stated that much of the 
evidence being related was based on hearsay, that some of it related to police 
forces in Cornwall and Bath and North East Somerset, and so was irrelevant to 
Oxford.  
 
 
 
 

81



 

Questions to the Interested Parties 
 
The following information was provided in answer to questions from Councillors:- 
 

1 The presence of lap dancing clubs was felt to be conducive towards 
sexual violence; 

2 A survey of local residents had been carried out in Oxford, and 108 
responses received.  

 
At this point Mr Rankin suggested again that less weight should be attached to 
this as evidence for it was based on hearsay 
 
No questions from the Applicant to the Interested Parties. 
 
Closing Submissions 
 
Interested Parties 
 
The Interested Parties objecting to the Application re-iterated the following 
points:- 
 

• The club was not in harmony with Council strategy and future plans; 

• It had an impact on local residents; 

• There were questions about its location and its contribution to the area. It 
may work well internally, but once in the locality it has a material 
detrimental effect externally. 

 
Applicant 
 
Mr Rankin, on behalf of the Applicant, made the following points:- 
 

• What was the motivation behind objectors’ representations? Were they 
local residents expressing their concerns or groups putting forward their 
views? There was no hard evidence from local people that this club 
caused any detriment to them. 

• Most people would not know that the club even existed in its current 
location. It was completely innocuous; 

• The advertisement hoarding by the railways station showed only a 
women’s face and could not be said to be offensive, even more so when 
the hoarding next to it (for skin cream) showed a naked woman; 

• No-one from Thames Valley Police had made any representation against 
the application or concerning a negative effect from the club upon the 
local area – had this happened, it might give more weight to arguments 
about a change of circumstances; 

• There was no evidence of a correlation between the opening of the club 
and an 18% rise in references to the sexual violence support group – this 
could have been caused by a host of other factors; 

• No-one has complained that the club is badly run; 

• The Council decided a year ago that the area was appropriate – to say 
otherwise now would be perverse. 

 
 
 
 

82



 

Daniel Smith – Legal Advisor to the Hearing. 
 
At this point, Mr Smith asked the Applicants to confirm that they sought to renew 
their existing licence with all existing conditions.  The Applicants confirmed this.  
 
Mr Smith pointed out, in relation to some points made in some of the 
representations seeking additional conditions to control advertising, that it was a 
condition of the existing licence that the premises could not place 
advertisements on their building or any indication of the nature of the operation 
taking place. The Sub Committee had no power to control advertisements 
elsewhere, and did not have the power to prevent them from advertising 
completely. The Sub Committee noted this.  
 
Mr Smith also gave advice that some reports relied on by the objectors were 
anonymous and hearsay. Such evidence could be taken into accounts but only 
limited weight should be given to it. The Sub Committee also had to consider 
whether it was fair to the Applicant to rely on such evidence when those making 
the report were not available to be questioned. 
 
 
 
At this point, the Sub Committee withdrew to deliberate and make its 
decision in private, accompanied by its Legal Advisor and the Committee 
Clerk. 
 
The Sub Committee then returned and Councillor Coulter announced that 
the sub Committee was not yet in a position to announce its decision but 
would do so in writing within five working days, in accordance with 
paragraph 26 of the Sub Committee hearing procedures.  
 
The decision, subsequently released on 26th September 2012, was as 
follows:- 
 
Having considered all representations, both written and oral, the Sub 
Committee RESOLVED to REFUSE the application as applied for, for 
reasons set out in the Decision Notice appended to these minutes. 
 
(Councillor Gotch asked that his minority view, disagreeing with this decision, be 
recorded) 
 
 
14. MINUTES 
 
Resolved to confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 30th 
July 2012, with the following amendments (in bold type):- 
 
Minute 22 – final paragraph to read:- 
 
“Councillor  Royce asked that her concerns about the food generally served from 
these types of street trading pitches (including the use of condemned meat, 
kitchens in garages and untrained staff), and that she felt unable to support 
any of the applicants on this occasion, be minuted.” 
 
Minutes 23 (2) to read:- 

83



 

 
“Delegate to officers the power to suspend the licence immediately should Mr 
Elouath fail to pay at the required time in future” 
 
 
15. MATTERS EXEMPT FROM PUBLICATION 
 
None 
 
 
 
The meeting started at 5.00 pm and ended at 7.37 pm 

84



APPENDIX 
 

Oxford City Council 
 

  
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982  
 
Hearing under paragraph 10 of Schedule 3 of the Act  
In respect of an Application for Renewal of a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue Licence 
 
Applicant:  Alistair Lockwood Thompson  
 
Premises: The Lodge, Oxpens Rd, Oxford. OX1 1RX 
 
Date of Hearing: 24th September 2012 
 
  
 
Hearing before the Licensing and Registration Sub Committee. 
 
Sub Committee Members: Councillors Van Coulter (Chair), Colin Cook, 
Michael Gotch and Gwynneth Royce.  
 
The Sub Committee heard from: 
 
� Allan Hibberd (Licensing Officer) 
� James Rankin (Counsel for the Applicant) 
� Marguerite Robinson (Objector) 
� Paul Hernandez (Objector) 
� Sue Tanner (Objector) 
� Louise Livesey (Objector) 

  
(As set out in the minutes to the meeting) 

 
The Sub Committee considered a report submitted by the Head of 
Environmental Development.  
 
 
Decision and reasons of the Licensing Registration Sub Committee 

 
1. The Sub Committee examined all the documents submitted and 

considered all the representations made at the hearing. The Sub 
Committee had particular regard to the written objections concerning 
the location of the premises and the Council resolution of 19/04/2010 
concerning generally inappropriate locations for sexual entertainment 
venues.   

 

85



2. The Resolution of 19/04/2010 states that “sexual entertainment 
venues are not generally appropriate near or in locations / or areas 
containing any of the following: 

 
� Historic buildings or tourist attractions, 

 
� Schools, play areas, nurseries, children’s centres or similar 

premises, 
 

� Shopping complexes, 
 

� Residential areas, 
 

� Places of worship, ”  
 

3. The Sub Committee found that the relevant locality for the purposes 
of deciding the application is the area near to the premises.   

 
4. Taking into account the ground of refusal at paragraph 12 (d) of 

Schedule 3 of the Act the Sub Committee found that renewal of the 
licence would be inappropriate having regard to the character of the 
relevant locality or use to which premises in the vicinity are put. 

 
The Sub Committee reached this conclusion for the following 
reasons:  

  

• The premises are near to Oxford Ice Rink, Oxford and Cherwell 
Valley College and the Oxpens car and coach park. The Ice Rink is a 
facility which attracts many children, young people, families and 
tourists and the College is similar to a school. The Sub Committee 
therefore felt the Resolution of 19/4/2010 on generally inappropriate 
locations was engaged in respect of the Ice Rink and College. 

 

• The Oxpens car and coach park, whilst not an 'attraction' in itself, 
nevertheless brings many tourists, visitors and local residents into the 
area of the premises at all hours. The operation of a sexual 
entertainment venue in the locality was therefore not appropriate. 

 

• The Oxpens road is a busy transport link and pedestrian route for 
visitors and residents living in the St Thomas and St Ebbs areas, a 
sexual entertainment venue was not appropriate in such a well used 
location. 

 

• The increasing concentration of student accommodation in the area, 
including development of student housing at Luther Court, Mill Street 
and Park End St, meant an increased use of the locality by young 
and possibly vulnerable students as a route to and from their 
accommodation.    

 

86



• Many of the representations received indicated there had been a 
negative change in the character of the vicinity brought about by the 
opening of the premises. 

 

•  Many of the representations received indicated that the operation of 
premises had created a hostile atmosphere in the locality and a 
heightened fear of the risk of sexual violence. Whilst acknowledging 
there was no evidence of any violent incidents attributable to the 
operation of the premises, the Sub Committee gave weight to the 
representations and felt the heightened fear reported was at least in 
part due to the existence of the premises and the type of 
entertainment it operated. The Sub Committee were mindful of the 
Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
to take reasonable steps to prevent crime and disorder.  

 

•  Of particular concern were reports contained in the representation of 
Louise Livesey concerning incidents of harassment by users of The 
Lodge toward a user of the Ice Rink. Whilst recognising these reports 
were both anonymous and hearsay and accordingly carried limited 
weight, the Sub Committee nevertheless took some account of them.  

 
 

 
5.  The Sub Committee recognised that its findings were a departure 

from the Council's decision to grant the licence in July 2011 but found 
that as a differently constituted Sub Committee with the benefit of 
evidence concerning the operation of the premises over the last year, 
they were entitled to reach a different conclusion.   

 
 

6. The Sub Committee were aware of the human rights considerations 
as set out in paragraphs 26 and 27 of the Head of Environmental 
Development's report, but found that the Applicant's right to 
protection of his licence was not a right so significant as to override 
their own calculation of the public interest. 

 
 
Decision: The Application is refused on the grounds that a sexual 
entertainment venue at the Premises would be inappropriate, having regard to 
the character of the relevant locality and the use to which other premises in 
the vicinity are put.      
 
 
Signed:    
 

 Van Coulter 
 

 
Councillor Van Coulter (Chair) 
 

87



    
Date: 26th September 2012 
Note: 

� Any statutory rights of appeal against this decision are set out in paragraph 27 of schedule 3 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. 

 

88


	Agenda
	3 Procedure to be followed
	4 Breach of Street Trading Consent Conditions - Miss Arzu de Jesus Neves
	Appendix - NEVES

	5 Breach of Street Trading Consent Conditions - Mr Mehdi Karrouchi and Mrs Wadeya Karrouchi
	Appendix - KARROUCHI

	6 Application for a vacant approved site
	Appendix - Akkouche

	7 Application for a vacant approved site.
	Appendix - YILMAZ

	8 Minutes
	Lodgerenwaldraftdecisionnotice


